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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(UNAUDITED)
March 31, June 30,
(Amounts in thousands, except share data) 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and equivalents $ 187,330 $ 143,104
Receivables 76,731 69,922
Inventories:
Raw materials 34,452 28,447
Finished goods 53,662 47,929
Total inventories 88,114 76,376
Other current assets 11,840 11,744
Total current assets 364,015 301,146
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Land, buildings and improvements 128,378 124,673
Machinery and equipment 288,351 272,582
Total cost 416,729 397,255
Less accumulated depreciation 229,316 216,584
Property, plant and equipment-net 187,413 180,671
Other Assets:
Goodwill 168,030 168,030
Other intangible assets-net 57,182 60,162
Other noncurrent assets 9,925 6,396
Total $ 786,565 $ 716,405
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 58,187 $ 41,353
Accrued liabilities 36,329 35,270
Total current liabilities 94,516 76,623
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 43,446 38,598
Deferred Income Taxes 15,740 25,207
Commitments and Contingencies
Shareholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock-authorized 3,050,000 shares; outstanding-none
Common stock-authorized 75,000,000 shares; outstanding-March-27,478,232 shares; June-27,448,424 shares 118,106 115,174
Retained earnings 1,263,443 1,206,671
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (10,652) (8,936)
Common stock in treasury, at cost (738,034) (736,932)
Total shareholders’ equity 632,863 575,977
Total $ 786,565 $ 716,405

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Net Sales

Cost of Sales
Gross Profit

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Multiemployer Pension Settlement and Related Costs
Operating Income
Other, Net
Income Before Income Taxes
Taxes Based on Income
Net Income
Net Income Per Common Share:
Basic
Diluted

Cash Dividends Per Common Share
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
$ 296,174 $ 293,834 914,755 $ 911,968
228,261 221,929 687,424 665,690
67,913 71,905 227,331 246,278
30,248 32,253 98,075 96,514
— 17,639 — 17,639
37,665 22,013 129,256 132,125
375 144 1,145 437
38,040 22,157 130,401 132,562
10,419 7,686 27,474 45,735
$ 27,621 $ 14,471 102,927 § 86,827
$ 1.01 $ 0.53 375§ 3.17
$ 1.00 § 0.53 374 $ 3.16
$ 0.60 S 0.55 1.75 § 1.60
27,405 27,379 27,399 27,369
27,458 27,442 27,456 27,438

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(UNAUDITED)
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,

(Amounts in thousands) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Net Income $ 27,621 $ 14,471 $ 102,927 $ 86,827
Other Comprehensive Income:
Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans:

Amortization of loss, before tax 134 170 402 508

Amortization of prior service credit, before tax 45) (46) (136) (136)

Total Other Comprehensive Income, Before Tax 89 124 266 372
Tax Attributes of Items in Other Comprehensive Income:

Amortization of loss, tax (41) (63) (140) (188)

Amortization of prior service credit, tax 14 17 47 50

Total Tax Expense 27 (46) 93) (138)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax 62 78 173 234
Comprehensive Income $ 27,683 $ 14,549 § 103,100 S 87,061

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

(Amounts in thousands)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Impacts of noncash items:

Depreciation and amortization

Change in acquisition-related contingent consideration

Deferred income taxes and other changes
Stock-based compensation expense
Pension plan activity

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Other current assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Payments for property additions
Other-net
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payment of dividends
Purchase of treasury stock
Tax withholdings for stock-based compensation
Net cash used in financing activities
Net change in cash and equivalents
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of period

Supplemental Disclosure of Operating Cash Flows:

Net cash payments for income taxes

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Nine Months Ended

March 31,
2018 2017
$ 102,927 $ 86,827
19,899 18,350
1,514 682
(8,633) (3,576)
3,484 3,110
(362) (183)
(6,828) (6,934)
(11,738) (3,107)
(303) (6,527)
16,879 18,569
116,839 107,211
(318) (34,997)
(22,561) (20,059)
36) 88
(22,915) (54,968)
(48,044) (43,886)
(1,102) (866)
(552) (820)
(49,698) (45,572)
44,226 6,671
143,104 118,080
$ 187,330 $ 124,751
$ 37,196 § 55,913




LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lancaster Colony Corporation and our wholly-owned
subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “we,” “us,” “our,” “registrant” or the “Company” and have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and SEC Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information
and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In our opinion, the interim condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments
necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations and financial position for such periods. All such adjustments reflected in the interim condensed
consolidated financial statements are considered to be of a normal recurring nature. Intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.
The results of operations for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year. Accordingly, these condensed consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Unless
otherwise noted, the term “year” and references to a particular year pertain to our fiscal year, which begins on July 1 and ends on June 30; for example, 2018 refers
to fiscal 2018 , which is the period from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 .

Effective July 1, 2017, David A. Ciesinski, our President and Chief Operating Officer, succeeded John B. Gerlach, Jr. as Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”).
As President and CEO, Mr. Ciesinski became our principal executive officer and chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”). This change resulted in modifications
to the CODM’s approach to managing the business, assessing performance and allocating resources. Consequently, beginning on July 1, 2017, our segment
reporting structure was amended to align with these changes, and our financial results are now presented as two reportable segments: Retail and Foodservice. See
Note 8 for additional details. All historical information was retroactively conformed to the current presentation.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, except for those acquired as part of a business combination, which are recorded at fair value at the time of
purchase. We use the straight-line method of computing depreciation for financial reporting purposes based on the estimated useful lives of the corresponding
assets. Purchases of property, plant and equipment included in Accounts Payable and excluded from the property additions and the change in accounts payable in
the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows were as follows:

March 31,

2018 2017
Construction in progress in Accounts Payable $ 1,279 §$ 1,887

Accrued Workers Compensation - Noncurrent

Accrued workers compensation included in Other Noncurrent Liabilities was $12.5 million and $8.5 million at March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2017 ,
respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents (restricted stock
and stock-settled stock appreciation rights) outstanding during each period. Unvested shares of restricted stock granted to employees are considered participating
securities since employees receive nonforfeitable dividends prior to vesting and, therefore, are included in the earnings allocation in computing EPS under the two-
class method. Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the diluted weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period, which includes the dilutive potential common shares associated with nonparticipating restricted stock and stock-
settled stock appreciation rights.



LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Basic and diluted net income per common share were calculated as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Net income $ 27,621 $ 14,471 $ 102,927 $ 86,827
Net income available to participating securities (58) (23) (206) (149)
Net income available to common shareholders $ 27,563 $ 14,448  §$ 102,721 $ 86,678
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic 27,405 27,379 27,399 27,369
Incremental share effect from:
Nonparticipating restricted stock 2 1 3 3
Stock-settled stock appreciation rights 51 62 54 66

Weighted average common shares outstanding — diluted 27,458 27,442 27,456 27,438
Net income per common share — basic $ 1.01 $§ 053 $ 375 $ 3.17
Net income per common share — diluted $ 1.00 § 053 % 374 $ 3.16

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table presents the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss by component:
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at beginning of period $ 8,825) $ (11,194) $ (8,936) $ (11,350)
Defined Benefit Pension Plan Items:

Amortization of unrecognized net loss 143 179 429 536
Postretirement Benefit Plan Items:

Amortization of unrecognized net gain 9) 9) 27) (28)

Amortization of prior service credit 45) (46) (136) (136)
Total other comprehensive income, before tax 89 124 266 372
Total tax expense 27 (46) 93) (138)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 62 78 173 234
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, Reclassification from accumulated other
comprehensive loss to retained earnings () (1,889) — (1,889) —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of period $ (10,652) $ (11,116) $ (10,652) $ (11,116)

(1) See further discussion of this reclassification under the caption “Recently Adopted Accounting Standards” within Note 1.

Significant Accounting Policies

There were no changes to our Significant Accounting Policies from those disclosed in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In March 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued new accounting guidance to improve the presentation of net periodic pension
cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost by disaggregating the service cost component from the other components of net periodic benefit cost. The
amendments require an employer to present service cost in the same line item(s) as compensation costs for the pertinent employees whereas the other components
of net periodic benefit cost must be reported separately from service cost and outside of income from operations. The amendments also allow only the service cost
component to be eligible for capitalization. The amendments require retrospective application for the income statement presentation provisions and prospective
application for the capitalization of the service cost component. However, as a result of prior years’ restructuring activities, we no longer have any active

employees continuing to accrue service cost.



LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Therefore, the service cost provisions are not applicable to us, and we expect only changes in classification on the income statement. The guidance will be effective
for us in fiscal 2019 including interim periods.

In May 2014, the FASB issued new accounting guidance for the recognition of revenue and issued subsequent clarifications of this new guidance in 2016 and
2017. The core principle of the new guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This model is based on a control approach
rather than the current risks and rewards model. The new guidance would also require expanded disclosures. Since we did not early adopt this standard, the
guidance will be effective for us in fiscal 2019 including interim periods and will require either retrospective application to each prior period presented or modified
retrospective application with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of adoption. We are currently evaluating the method of
adoption but believe that we will apply the modified retrospective approach. We are finalizing our assessment of the impact that this standard will have on our
accounting policies, processes, system requirements, internal controls and disclosures using internal resources and the assistance of a third party. We have
completed a review of selected customer contracts and are evaluating the impact of the new standard on certain common practices currently employed by us and by
other manufacturers of consumer products. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a material impact on our financial position or results of
operations. However, there will be additional required disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

In February 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance to require lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for leases with terms of
more than 12 months and issued subsequent clarifications of this new guidance in 2018. This guidance retains the two classifications of a lease as either an
operating or finance lease (previously referred to as a capital lease). Both lease classifications require the lessee to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
based upon the present value of the lease payments. Finance leases will reflect the financial arrangement by recognizing interest expense on the lease liability
separately from the amortization expense of the right-of-use asset. Operating leases will recognize lease expense (with no separate recognition of interest expense)
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The guidance requires expanded qualitative and quantitative disclosures, including additional information about
the amounts recorded in the consolidated financial statements. The guidance will be effective for us in fiscal 2020 including interim periods using a modified
retrospective approach. We are currently evaluating the impact of this guidance.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In February 2018, the FASB issued new accounting guidance to allow a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income/loss to retained
earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“Tax Act”). GAAP requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be adjusted for
the effect of a change in tax rates with the effect of the change included in income from continuing operations even when the related income tax effects of items in
accumulated other comprehensive income/loss were originally recognized in other comprehensive income rather than in income from continuing operations. We
adopted the new guidance on a prospective basis in the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and elected to reclassify these stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Act
from accumulated other comprehensive loss to retained earnings in the period of adoption. These tax effects related to the impact of the change in the federal
income tax rate on pension and postretirement benefit amounts remaining in accumulated other comprehensive loss, and the reclassification resulted in a net
increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss of $1.9 million and a corresponding increase in retained earnings. Our accounting policy is to release stranded
tax effects from accumulated other comprehensive loss. As this guidance only relates to balance sheet classification, there was no impact on the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Income.

In March 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance to simplify the accounting for stock-based compensation. The amendments include changes to the
accounting for share-based payment transactions, including: the inclusion of the tax consequences related to stock-based compensation within the computation of
income tax expense versus equity; the classification of awards as either equity or liabilities; and the classification of share-based activity on the statement of cash
flows. The adoption may result in increased volatility to our income tax expense and resulting net income in future periods dependent upon, among other variables,
the price of our common stock and the timing and volume of share-based payment award activity such as employee exercises of stock-settled stock appreciation
rights and vesting of restricted stock awards. We adopted the new guidance on July 1, 2017 and elected to continue to estimate forfeitures. The adoption of this
guidance resulted in 1) the prospective recognition of windfall tax benefits and shortfall tax deficiencies in income tax expense; 2) the retrospective reclassification
of windfall tax benefits on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows from financing activities to operating activities; and 3) the retrospective
reclassification of employee tax withholdings on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows from operating activities to financing activities. There was
no material impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements as a result of this adoption.



LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Note 2 — Acquisition

On November 17, 2016, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Angelic Bakehouse, Inc. (“Angelic”). Angelic, a privately owned manufacturer and
marketer of premium sprouted grain bakery products, is based near Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The purchase price of $35.5 million was funded by cash on hand and
includes immaterial post-closing adjustments, which were paid in April 2017 and July 2017, but excludes contingent consideration relating to an additional earn-
out payment which is tied to performance-based conditions. In general, the terms of the acquisition specify that the sellers will receive an earn-out based upon a
pre-determined multiple of the defined adjusted EBITDA of Angelic for fiscal 2021. We are unable to provide a range for the amount of this earn-out because it is
based on the future adjusted EBITDA of Angelic, and the earn-out does not contain a minimum or maximum value. See further discussion of the earn-out in
Note 3. Angelic is reported in our Retail segment, and its results of operations have been included in our condensed consolidated financial statements from the date
of acquisition.

Note 3 — Fair Value
Fair value is defined as the exit price, or the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants as of the measurement date. GAAP sets forth a three-level fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. The
three levels are as follows:
Level 1 — defined as observable inputs, such as quoted market prices in active markets.
Level 2 — defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 — defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore, requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.
Our financial assets and liabilities consist principally of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and contingent consideration payable. The estimated fair
value of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximates their carrying value.

Our contingent consideration, which is measured at fair value on a recurring basis, is included in Other Noncurrent Liabilities on the Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets. The following table summarizes our contingent consideration:

Fair Value Measurements at March 31, 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Acquisition-related contingent consideration $ — — 3 16,542 $ 16,542

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Acquisition-related contingent consideration $ — 3 — 3 15,028 $ 15,028

The contingent consideration resulted from the earn-out associated with our November 17, 2016 acquisition of Angelic. The purchase price did not include
the future earn-out payment which is tied to performance-based conditions. In general, the terms of the acquisition specify that the sellers will receive an earn-out
based upon a pre-determined multiple of the defined adjusted EBITDA of Angelic for fiscal 2021. The fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated
using a present value approach, which incorporates factors such as business risks and projections, to estimate an expected value. This fair value measurement is
based on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represents a Level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy. Using this valuation technique,
the fair value of the contingent consideration was determined to be $13.9 million at November 17, 2016.
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LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

The following table represents our Level 3 fair value measurements using significant other unobservable inputs for acquisition-related contingent
consideration:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017

Acquisition-related contingent consideration at beginning of period $ 16,021 $ 14,096 $ 15,028 $ =
Additions — — — 13,872
Changes in fair value included in Selling, General and Administrative
Expenses 521 458 1,514 682

Acquisition-related contingent consideration at end of period $ 16,542 $ 14,554 § 16,542 § 14,554

Note 4 — Long-Term Debt

At March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2017 , we had an unsecured credit facility (“Facility”) under which we could borrow, on a revolving credit basis, up to a
maximum of $150 million at any one time, with potential to expand the total credit availability to $225 million subject to us obtaining consent of the issuing banks
and certain other conditions. The Facility expires on April 8, 2021 , and all outstanding amounts are then due and payable. Interest is variable based upon formulas
tied to LIBOR or an alternative base rate defined in the Facility, at our option. We must also pay facility fees that are tied to our then-applicable consolidated
leverage ratio. Loans may be used for general corporate purposes. Due to the nature of its terms, when we have outstanding borrowings under the Facility, they will
be classified as long-term debt.

At March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2017 , we had no borrowings outstanding under the Facility. At March 31, 2018 , we had $5.1 million of standby letters of
credit outstanding, which reduced the amount available for borrowing on the Facility. We paid no interest for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2018 and
2017 .

The Facility contains certain restrictive covenants, including limitations on indebtedness, asset sales and acquisitions. There are two principal financial
covenants: an interest expense test that requires us to maintain an interest coverage ratio not less than 2.5 to 1 at the end of each fiscal quarter; and an indebtedness
test that requires us to maintain a consolidated leverage ratio not greater than 3 to 1 at all times. The interest coverage ratio is calculated by dividing Consolidated
EBIT by Consolidated Interest Expense, and the leverage ratio is calculated by dividing Consolidated Debt by Consolidated EBITDA. All financial terms used in
the covenant calculations are defined more specifically in the Facility.

Note 5 — Commitments and Contingencies

At March 31, 2018 , we were a party to various claims and litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of business. Such matters did not have a material
effect on the current-year results of operations and, in our opinion, their ultimate disposition will not have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

With our acquisition of Angelic, we have a contingent liability recorded for the earn-out associated with the transaction. See further discussion in Note 3.

Note 6 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As described in Notes 1 and 8, we changed our reportable segments as of July 1, 2017 when our organizational structure changed. Using a relative fair value
approach, we reassigned our existing goodwill balance to the two new reporting units that directly align with our new Retail and Foodservice reportable segments.
Based on this approach, goodwill attributable to the Retail and Foodservice segments was $119.3 million and $48.7 million , respectively, at March 31, 2018 and
June 30, 2017 .
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LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

The following table summarizes our identifiable other intangible assets.

March 31, June 30,
2018 2017

Tradenames (20 to 30-year life)

Gross carrying value $ 50,321 $ 50,321

Accumulated amortization (4,586) (3,130)

Net carrying value $ 45,735  $ 47,191
Trademarks (27-year life)

Gross carrying value $ 370§ 370

Accumulated amortization (328) (241)

Net carrying value $ 42 3 129
Customer Relationships (10 to 15-year life)

Gross carrying value $ 14,207 § 14,207

Accumulated amortization (8,002) (7,160)

Net carrying value $ 6,205 $ 7,047
Technology / Know-how (10-year life)

Gross carrying value $ 6,350 3 6,350

Accumulated amortization (1,523) (1,047)

Net carrying value $ 4,827 3 5,303
Non-compete Agreements (5-year life)

Gross carrying value $ 791 $ 791

Accumulated amortization (418) (299)

Net carrying value $ 373  $ 492

Total net carrying value $ 57,182 $ 60,162

Amortization expense for our other intangible assets, which is reflected in Selling, General and Administrative Expenses, was as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Amortization expense $ 1,007 $ 1,001 $ 2,980 3 2,538

Total annual amortization expense for each of the next five years is estimated to be as follows:

2019 $ 3,858
2020 $ 3,823
2021 $ 3,738
2022 $ 3,664
2023 $ 3,105

Note 7 — Income Taxes

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“Tax Act”) was signed into law on December 22, 2017 with an effective date of January 1, 2018. Most notably, the Tax
Act reduced the statutory federal income tax rate for corporations from 35% to 21% . Since we file our tax return based on our fiscal year, the statutory federal
income tax rate for our 2018 tax return will be a blended rate of 28.1% . In addition to the effect of the lower overall federal tax rate, the Tax Act resulted in a
$9 million one-time benefit for the preliminary re-measurement of our net deferred tax liability in the quarter ended December 31, 2017.

The SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118”) on December 22, 2017. SAB 118 allows for a measurement period in which companies can
either use provisional estimates for changes resulting from the Tax Act or apply the tax laws that were in effect immediately prior to the Tax Act being enacted if
estimates cannot be determined at the time of the preparation of the financial statements until the actual impacts can be determined. We recorded an estimate of the
impact of the Tax Act within our December 31, 2017 financial statements, including the impact of items recorded within accumulated
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LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

other comprehensive loss. There were no material changes to these estimates in the quarter ended March 31, 2018. We will continue to evaluate the impacts of the
Tax Act and record adjustments, as needed, but do not expect material changes to the amounts recorded. In February 2018, the FASB issued new accounting
guidance to allow a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income/loss to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Act.
We recorded this reclassification in the quarter ended March 31, 2018. See further discussion under the caption “Recently Adopted Accounting Standards” in Note
1.

Prepaid federal income taxes of $5.9 million and $6.1 million were included in Other Current Assets at March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2017, respectively.
Prepaid state and local income taxes of $0.6 million and $0.9 million were included in Other Current Assets at March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2017 , respectively.

Note 8 — Business Segment Information

Effective July 1, 2017, David A. Ciesinski, our President and Chief Operating Officer, succeeded John B. Gerlach, Jr. as CEO. As President and CEO,
Mr. Ciesinski became our principal executive officer and CODM. This change resulted in modifications to the CODM’s approach to managing the business,
assessing performance and allocating resources. Consequently, beginning on July 1, 2017, our segment reporting structure was amended to align with these
changes, and our financial results are now presented as two reportable segments: Retail and Foodservice. Costs that are directly attributable to either Retail or
Foodservice are charged directly to the appropriate segment. Costs that are deemed to be indirect, excluding corporate expenses and other unusual significant
transactions, are allocated to the two reportable segments using a reasonable methodology that is consistently applied. All historical information was retroactively
conformed to the current presentation. These segment changes had no effect on previously reported consolidated net sales, operating income, net income or
earnings per share.

Retail - The vast majority of the products we sell in the Retail segment are sold through sales personnel, food brokers and distributors. We have placement of
products in U.S. grocery produce departments through our refrigerated salad dressings, vegetable dips and fruit dips. Our flatbread products and sprouted grain
bakery products are generally placed in the specialty bakery/deli section of the grocery store. We also have products typically marketed in the shelf-stable section
of the grocery store, which include salad dressing, slaw dressing, dry egg noodles and croutons. Within the frozen food section of the grocery store, we also have
prominent market positions of frozen yeast rolls, garlic breads and egg noodles.

Foodservice - The vast majority of the products we sell in the Foodservice segment are sold through sales personnel, food brokers and distributors. Products
we sell in the Foodservice segment are often custom-formulated and include salad dressings, sandwich and dipping sauces, frozen breads and yeast rolls. The
majority of our Foodservice sales are products sold under branded and private label to distributors and restaurants primarily in the United States. Additionally, a
portion of our sales are frozen specialty noodles, pasta and flatbreads sold to industrial customers for use as ingredients or components in their products.

Within our organization, our procurement, manufacturing, warehousing and distribution activities are substantially integrated across our operations in order
to maximize efficiency and productivity, as many of our products are similar between the two segments. Consequently, we do not prepare, and the CODM does not
review, separate balance sheets for the reportable segments. As such, our external reporting will not include the presentation of identifiable assets by reportable
segment. The composition of our identifiable assets at March 31, 2018 is generally consistent with that of June 30, 2017 .
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LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Tabular amounts in thousands, except per share data)

We continue to evaluate our segments based on net sales and operating income. The following summary of financial information reflects the results of the

Retail and Foodservice segments:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Net Sales
Retail $ 152,011 § 151,782  $ 493,441 $ 487,238
Foodservice 144,163 142,052 421,314 424,730
Total $ 296,174 S 293,834 $ 914,755 $ 911,968
Operating Income
Retail $ 26,321 $ 29,129  § 96,504 S 106,840
Foodservice 14,296 13,590 42,393 52,756
Multiemployer Pension Settlement and Related Costs — (17,639) — (17,639)
Corporate Expenses (2,952) (3,067) (9,641) (9,832)
Total $ 37,665 $ 22,013  § 129,256 $ 132,125

Note 9 — Stock-Based Compensation

There have been no changes to our stock-based compensation plans from those disclosed in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our stock-settled stock appreciation rights (“SSSARs”) compensation expense was $0.6 million and $0.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018
and 2017 , respectively. Year-to-date SSSARs compensation expense was $1.7 million for the current-year period compared to $1.3 million for the prior-year
period. At March 31, 2018, there was $5.4 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to SSSARs that we will recognize over a weighted-average

period of 2 years .

Our restricted stock compensation expense was $0.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 and $1.8 million for the nine months
ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 . At March 31, 2018 , there was $5.0 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to restricted stock that we will

recognize over a weighted-average period of 2 years .
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. Unless otherwise noted, references to “year” pertain to our fiscal year; for example, 2018 refers to

fiscal 2018 , which is the period from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 .

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, all included elsewhere in
this report. The forward-looking statements in this section and other parts of this report involve risks, uncertainties and other factors, including statements
regarding our plans, objectives, goals, strategies, and financial performance. Our actual results could differ materially from the results anticipated in these
forward-looking statements due to these factors. For more information, see the section below entitled “Forward-Looking Statements.”

OVERVIEW
Business Overview
Lancaster Colony Corporation is a manufacturer and marketer of specialty food products for the retail and foodservice channels.

Effective July 1, 2017, David A. Ciesinski, our President and Chief Operating Officer, succeeded John B. Gerlach, Jr. as our Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”). As President and CEO, Mr. Ciesinski became our principal executive officer and chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”). This change resulted in
modifications to the CODM’s approach to managing the business, assessing performance and allocating resources. Consequently, beginning on July 1, 2017, our
segment reporting structure was amended to align with these changes, and our financial results are now presented as two reportable segments: Retail and
Foodservice. Costs that are directly attributable to either Retail or Foodservice are charged directly to the appropriate segment. Costs that are deemed to be indirect,
excluding corporate expenses and other unusual significant transactions, are allocated to the two reportable segments using a reasonable methodology that is
consistently applied. All historical information was retroactively conformed to the current presentation. These segment changes had no effect on previously
reported consolidated net sales, operating income, net income or earnings per share. See Note 8 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for further
information about our segments.

Our sales are predominately domestic.

Our business has the potential to achieve future growth in sales and profitability due to attributes such as:
* leading Retail market positions in several product categories with a high-quality perception;
*  recognized innovation in Retail products;
e abroad customer base in both Retail and Foodservice accounts;
*  well-regarded culinary expertise among Foodservice customers;
*  recognized leadership in Foodservice product development;
*  experience in integrating complementary business acquisitions; and
* historically strong cash flow generation that supports growth opportunities.

Our goal is to grow both Retail and Foodservice segment sales over time by:
* leveraging the strength of our Retail brands to increase current product sales;
*  introducing new products and expanding distribution; and
*  continuing to rely upon the strength of our reputation in Foodservice product development and quality.

Part of our future growth may result from acquisitions. We continue to review potential acquisitions that we believe will complement our existing product
lines, enhance our profitability and/or offer good expansion opportunities in a manner that fits our overall strategic goals.

Consistent with this acquisition strategy, in November 2016 we acquired substantially all of the assets of Angelic Bakehouse, Inc. (“Angelic”), a
manufacturer and marketer of premium sprouted grain bakery products based near Milwaukee, Wisconsin. This transaction is discussed in further detail in Note 2
to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

We have made substantial capital investments to support our existing operations and future growth opportunities. For example, we recently expanded our
warehousing capacity at Angelic to help meet anticipated growth in demand for our sprouted grain bakery products. Based on our current plans and expectations,
we believe our capital expenditures for 2018 will approximate $30 million . We will fund our remaining capital needs in 2018 with cash generated from operations.
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RESULTS OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

Net Sales and Gross Profit

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 Change 2018 2017 Change
Net Sales

Retail $ 152,011 $ 151,782 $ 229 —% $ 493,441 $ 487,238 $ 6,203 1%

Foodservice 144,163 142,052 2,111 1% 421,314 424,730 (3,416) 1)%

Total $ 296,174 $ 293,834 $ 2,340 1% $ 914,755 $ 911,968 $ 2,787 — %

Gross Profit $ 67,913 $ 71,905 $ (3,992) ©6)% $ 227,331 $ 246,278 $  (18,947) (8)%
Gross Margin 22.9% 24.5% 24.9% 27.0%

In November 2016, we acquired Angelic and its results of operations have been included in our condensed consolidated financial statements from the date of
acquisition in the Retail segment.

Consolidated net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2018 increased 1% as Foodservice net sales improved while Retail net sales were essentially
flat. Consolidated net sales for the nine months ended March 31, 2018 were nearly flat compared to the prior year-to-date period as the 1% increase in Retail
segment net sales was largely offset by a decline in Foodservice segment net sales.

Consolidated gross profit and related margins declined for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2018 , d riven by the impact of increased commodity
costs, most notably eggs for the quarter and year-to-date periods, as well as soybean oil, dairy ingredients and garlic for the year-to-date period. Higher freight
costs also impacted both comparative periods. These increased costs were partially offset by supply chain savings realized from our lean six sigma program and
pricing actions taken in our Foodservice segment in the quarter ended March 31, 2018 . Excluding the impact of pricing, total raw-material costs were estimated to
have negatively affected our gross margins by nearly 1% and more than 1% of consolidated net sales for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2018,
respectively. Higher freight costs were estimated to have negatively affected our gross margins by nearly 1% and less than 1% of net sales for the three and nine
months ended March 31, 2018 , respectively. The prior-year quarterly results reflected the net impact of deflationary foodservice pricing and flat commodity costs.
The prior-year results for the year-to-date period reflected a notable benefit from significantly lower ingredient costs with only a modest offset from deflationary
pricing.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 Change 2018 2017 Change
SG&A Expenses $ 30,248 $ 32,253 $ (2,005) ©)% $ 98,075 $ 96,514 $ 1,561 2%
SG&A Expenses as a
Percentage of Net Sales 10.2% 11.0% 10.7% 10.6%

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses decreased 6% for the quarter and increased 2% for the year-to-date period. The decline in SG&A
expenses for the quarter was due to reduced spending for consumer promotions and cost savings gained through the realignment of our retail broker network. The
year-to-date increase in these costs reflected incremental amortization expense and other recurring noncash charges attributed to Angelic during the first half of
2018 as well as a higher level of investments in personnel and business growth initiatives. These increases were partially offset by a lower level of promotional
spending.

Multiemployer Pension Settlement and Related Costs

In January 2017 the employees at our Bedford Heights, Ohio plant voted to ratify a new collective bargaining agreement. Among other terms, the new
agreement provided for our complete withdrawal from the underfunded multiemployer Cleveland Bakers and Teamsters Pension Fund. In lieu of contributions to
the pension fund, we are making non-elective contributions for the union employees at the Bedford Heights, Ohio plant into a union-sponsored 401(k) plan. We
initially funded the new 401(k) plan and paid a withdrawal liability as settlement of our portion of underfunded pension benefits of the multiemployer plan. We
recorded a one-time charge of $17.6 million for the multiemployer pension settlement and other benefit-related costs in the quarter ended March 31, 2017. Given
the unusual nature of these significant indirect costs, this charge was not allocated to our two reportable segments.
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Operating Income

The foregoing factors contributed to consolidated operating income totaling $37.7 million and $129.3 million for the three and nine months ended March 31,
2018, respectively. Our operating income can be summarized as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 Change 2018 2017 Change
Operating Income
Retail $ 26,321 $ 29,129 $ (2,808) 10)% $ 96,504 $ 106,840 $  (10,336) (10)%
Foodservice 14,296 13,590 706 5% 42,393 52,756 (10,363) (20)%
Multiemployer Pension
Settlement and Related
Costs — (17,639) 17,639 (100)% — (17,639) 17,639 (100)%
Corporate Expenses (2,952) (3,067) 115 4)% (9,641) (9,832) 191 2)%
Total $ 37,665 $ 22,013 $ 15,652 1% $ 129,256 $ 132,125 $ (2,869) 2)%
Operating Margin
Retail 17.3% 19.2% 19.6% 21.9%
Foodservice 9.9% 9.6% 10.1% 12.4%
Total 12.7% 7.5% 14.1% 14.5%

See discussion of operating results by segment following the discussion of “Net Income” below.

Income Before Income Taxes

As impacted by the factors discussed above, most notably the one-time charge of $17.6 million in the prior-year third quarter for the multiemployer pension
settlement and related costs, income before income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2018 increased by $15.8 million to $38.0 million from the prior-
year total of $22.2 million . Income before income taxes for the nine months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 was $130.4 million and $132.6 million , respectively.

Taxes Based on Income

Our effective tax rate was 21.1% and 34.5% for the nine months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 , respectively. The current-year rate was impacted by the
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“Tax Act”), which was signed into law on December 22, 2017 with an effective date of January 1, 2018. Most notably, the Tax Act
reduced the statutory federal income tax rate for corporations from 35% to 21%. Since we file our tax return based on our fiscal year, the statutory federal income
tax rate for our 2018 tax return will be a blended rate of 28.1%. In addition to the effect of the lower overall federal tax rate, the Tax Act resulted in a $9 million
one-time benefit for the preliminary re-measurement of our net deferred tax liability in the quarter ended December 31, 2017. Excluding the impact of this one-
time benefit, our effective tax rate was 28.5% for the nine months ended March 31, 2018 , and we expect our effective tax rate to remain at approximately 28.5%
for the final quarter of our fiscal year. Looking ahead to 2019, we expect an effective tax rate of approximately 24%.

Our taxes based on income for the current year consist of the following components:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

(Dollars in thousands) March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
One-time benefit on preliminary re-measurement of net deferred tax liability $ (330) 0.9% $ (9,208) (7.1)%
Net windfall tax benefits - stock-based compensation (209) 0.5)% (389) 0.3)%
Federal, state and local provision 10,958 28.8 % 37,071 28.5 %
Taxes Based on Income $ 10,419 274% $ 27,474 21.1 %

The SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118”) on December 22, 2017. SAB 118 allows for a measurement period in which companies can
either use provisional estimates for changes resulting from the Tax Act or apply the tax laws that were in effect immediately prior to the Tax Act being enacted if
estimates cannot be determined at the time of the preparation of the financial statements until the actual impacts can be determined. We recorded an estimate of the
impact of the Tax Act within our December 31, 2017 financial statements, including the impact of items recorded within accumulated other comprehensive loss.
As noted in the table above, there were no material changes to these estimates in the quarter ended March 31, 2018. We will continue to evaluate the impacts of the
Tax Act and record adjustments, as needed, but do not expect material changes to the amounts recorded. In February 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued new accounting guidance to allow a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income/loss to retained earnings for stranded tax
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effects resulting from the Tax Act. We recorded this reclassification in the quarter ended March 31, 2018. See further discussion under the caption “Recently
Adopted Accounting Standards” in Note 1 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

On July 1, 2017, we adopted new accounting guidance for stock-based compensation that, among other things, requires the recognition of windfall tax
benefits and shortfall tax deficiencies in our income tax expense, instead of equity. For the nine months ended March 31, 2018 , the impact of net windfall tax
benefits reduced our effective tax rate by 0.3% . This adoption may result in increased volatility to our income tax expense and resulting net income, dependent
upon, among other variables, the price of our common stock and the timing and volume of share-based payment award activity such as employee exercises of
stock-settled stock appreciation rights and vesting of restricted stock awards. This adoption is discussed in further detail under the caption “Recently Adopted
Accounting Standards” in Note 1 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Net Income

As influenced by the factors noted above, particularly the impact of the Tax Act and the prior-year multiemployer pension charge, third quarter net income
for 2018 of $27.6 million increased from the preceding year’s net income for the quarter of $14.5 million and year-to-date net income of $102.9 million was higher
than the prior year-to-date total of $86.8 million . Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding have remained relatively stable for the current and prior-
year periods ended March 31 . As a result, and due to the change in net income for each year, net income per share for the third quarter of 2018 totaled $1.00 per
diluted share, as compared to net income of $0.53 per diluted share in the prior year. Year-to-date net income per share was $3.74 per diluted share, as compared to
$3.16 per diluted share for the prior-year period.

In the nine months ended March 31, 2018, the Tax Act resulted in a one-time deferred tax benefit of $9 million or $.33 per diluted share. For the three and
nine months ended March 31, 2017, the estimated impact of the multiemployer pension charge was $0.42 per diluted share.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - SEGMENTS

Retail Segment
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 Change 2018 2017 Change
Net Sales $ 152,011 $ 151,782 $ 229 —% 3 493,441 $ 487,238 $ 6,203 1%
Operating Income $ 26,321 $ 29,129 $ (2,808) 10)% $ 96,504 $ 106,840 $ (10,336) (10)%
Operating Margin 17.3% 19.2% 19.6% 21.9%

For the three months ended March 31, 2018 , Retail segment net sales were essentially flat as sales of shelf-stable dressings and sauces under license
agreements remained a growth driver while frozen bread sales volumes declined from the prior-year quarter as we recovered from the disruptions in the supply of
our garlic toast products. We implemented pricing actions for our primary refrigerated produce dressings and dips as planned, but our net price realization for the
quarter was marginalized by offsetting trade spend, including our previous commitments to retailer promotional activities.

Year-to-date net sales for the Retail segment reached $493.4 million , a 1% increase from the prior-year total of $487.2 million driven by growth from our
shelf-stable licensed dressings and sauces, increased volumes for frozen dinner rolls and incremental sales from Angelic. The impact of pricing on Retail net sales
was minimal for the year-to-date period.

For the three and nine months ended March 31, 2018 , Retail segment operating income and related margins decreased due to the impact of increased
commodity and freight costs. Year-to-date results were also impacted by incremental amortization expense and other recurring noncash charges attributed to
Angelic during the first half of 2018 as well as our investments in personnel and business growth initiatives. These higher costs were partially offset by supply
chain savings realized from our lean six sigma program, lower consumer promotional and other trade spending and lower brokerage costs due to the realignment of
our retail broker network. The prior-year operating income and related margins reflected a significant benefit from lower ingredient costs for the year-to-date
period.

Foodservice Segment
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 31, March 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2018 2017 Change 2018 2017 Change
Net Sales $ 144,163  $ 142,052  $ 2,111 1% $ 421,314 $ 424730  $ (3,416) 1%
Operating Income $ 14,296 $ 13,590 $ 706 5% $ 42,393 $ 52,756 $ (10,363) (20)%
Operating Margin 9.9% 9.6% 10.1% 12.4%
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For the three months ended March 31, 2018 , Foodservice segment net sales increased 1% as driven by pricing actions taken to help offset higher freight and
commodity costs as well as volume increases for frozen yeast rolls and frozen pasta. For the nine months ended March 31, 2018 , Foodservice segment net sales
decreased 1% as improvements due to pricing actions that were taken in the third quarter and higher volumes for frozen yeast rolls were more than offset by the
continued overall softness in the restaurant industry resulting in a decline in sales to our national chain restaurant accounts, including limited-time-offer programs,
as compared to the prior year. Inflationary pricing totaled more than 1% and 1% of net sales for the three and nine months ended March 31, 2018 , respectively.

The increase in Foodservice operating income and related margins for the three months ended March 31, 2018 was mainly due to the pricing actions taken to
help offset increased freight and commodity costs. For the nine months ended March 31, 2018 , the decline in Foodservice segment operating income and related
margins was driven by the impact of the year-to-date lower sales volumes, increased commodity and freight costs and our investments in personnel and business
growth initiatives. These higher costs were partially offset by supply chain savings realized from our lean six sigma program and inflationary pricing. The prior-
year operating income and related margins reflected a significant benefit from lower ingredient costs for the year-to-date period.

With regard to the impact of commodity costs on Foodservice segment operating income, most of our supply contracts with national chain restaurant
accounts incorporate pricing adjustments to account for changes in ingredient costs. These supply contracts may vary by customer with regard to the time lapse
between the actual change in ingredient costs we incur and the effective date of the associated price increase or decrease. As a result, the reported operating
margins of the Foodservice segment are subject to increased volatility during periods of rapidly rising or falling ingredient costs because at least some portion of
the change in ingredient costs is reflected in the segment’s results prior to the impact of any associated change in pricing. In addition, the Foodservice segment has
an inherently higher degree of margin volatility from changes in ingredient costs when compared to the Retail segment due to its overall lower margin profile and
higher ratio of ingredient pounds to net sales.

LOOKING FORWARD

Looking forward to our fiscal fourth quarter, based on current market conditions we foresee continued challenges coming from commodity and freight costs
as these costs are expected to remain above last year’s level. We have initiatives in place or planned for both the short- and long-term to address these higher
freight and commodity costs including pricing actions, a more optimized distribution network and tactical procurement.

We expect volume-driven growth in our Retail segment with support from recent and upcoming new product introductions. We also expect improved net
price realization for price increases that began in the third quarter in the Retail segment and incremental benefit from further Retail pricing actions planned for the
fourth quarter. In the Foodservice segment, we anticipate projected volume growth from select national chain restaurant accounts and distributors of our branded
products, as well as continued benefits from Foodservice segment price increases that were implemented early in the third quarter.

If successful, we expect our planned pricing actions for both segments to significantly offset the higher commodity and freight costs mentioned above.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

For the nine months ended March 31, 2018 , net cash provided by operating activities totaled $116.8 million , as compared to $107.2 million in the prior-year
period. This increase was due to higher net income as partially offset by the decrease in deferred income taxes as a result of the Tax Act.

Cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended March 31, 2018 was $22.9 million , as compared to $55.0 million in the prior year. This decrease
reflects cash paid for the acquisition of Angelic in November 2016, as partially offset by a higher level of capital expenditures in 2018 , with the largest amounts
spent on warehousing and new equipment to increase capacity and/or improve operational efficiencies.

Cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended March 31, 2018 of $49.7 million increased from the prior-year total of $45.6 million . This
increase was primarily due to higher dividend payments in the current year.

Under our unsecured revolving credit facility (“Facility”), we may borrow up to a maximum of $150 million at any one time. We had no borrowings
outstanding under the Facility at March 31, 2018 . At March 31, 2018 , we had $5.1 million of standby letters of credit outstanding, which reduced the amount
available for borrowing on the Facility. The Facility expires in April 2021, and all outstanding amounts are then due and payable. Interest is variable based upon
formulas tied to LIBOR or an alternative base rate defined in the Facility, at our option. We must also pay facility fees that are tied to our then-applicable
consolidated leverage ratio. Loans may be used for general corporate purposes. Due to the nature of its terms, when we have outstanding borrowings under the
Facility, they will be classified as long-term debt.
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The Facility contains certain restrictive covenants, including limitations on indebtedness, asset sales and acquisitions, and financial covenants relating to
interest coverage and leverage. At March 31, 2018 , we were in compliance with all applicable provisions and covenants of this facility, and we exceeded the
requirements of the financial covenants by substantial margins. At March 31, 2018 , there were no events that would constitute a default under this facility.

We currently expect to remain in compliance with the Facility’s covenants for the foreseeable future. However, a default under the Facility could accelerate
the repayment of any then outstanding indebtedness and limit our access to $75 million of additional credit available under the Facility. Such an event could
require a reduction in or curtailment of cash dividends or share repurchases, reduce or delay beneficial expansion or investment plans, or otherwise impact our
ability to meet our obligations when due.

We believe that cash provided by operating activities and our existing balances in cash and equivalents, in addition to that available under the Facility,
should be adequate to meet our cash requirements through 2018 and 2019. If we were to borrow outside of the Facility under current market terms, our average
interest rate may increase significantly and have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

We have various contractual obligations that are appropriately recorded as liabilities in our condensed consolidated financial statements. Certain other
contractual obligations are not recognized as liabilities in our condensed consolidated financial statements. Examples of such items are commitments to purchase
raw materials or packaging inventory that has not yet been received as of March 31, 2018 and future minimum lease payments for the use of property and
equipment under operating lease agreements. Aside from expected changes in raw-material costs associated with changes in product demand or pricing, there have
been no significant changes to the contractual obligations disclosed in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

There have been no changes in critical accounting policies from those policies disclosed in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Recent accounting pronouncements and their impact on our consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 1 to the condensed consolidated
financial statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We desire to take advantage of the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “PSLRA”). This Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q contains various “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the PSLRA and other applicable securities laws. Such statements can be
identified by the use of the forward-looking words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” “expect,” “hope” or similar words. These
statements discuss future expectations; contain projections regarding future developments, operations or financial conditions; or state other forward-looking
information. Such statements are based upon assumptions and assessments made by us in light of our experience and perception of historical trends, current
conditions, expected future developments and other factors we believe to be appropriate. These forward-looking statements involve various important risks,
uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Actual results may
differ as a result of factors over which we have no, or limited, control including, without limitation, the specific influences outlined below. Management believes
these forward-looking statements to be reasonable; however, one should not place undue reliance on such statements that are based on current expectations.
Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update such forward-looking statements, except as required
by law.

99 < 99 ¢

Items which could impact these forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

» adverse changes in freight, energy or other costs of producing, distributing or transporting our products;
» fluctuations in the cost and availability of ingredients and packaging;

» the reaction of customers or consumers to price increases we may implement;

*  price and product competition;

*  the impact of customer store brands on our branded retail volumes;

* dependence on contract manufacturers, distributors and freight transporters;

*  capacity constraints that may affect our ability to meet demand or may increase our costs;

» the success and cost of new product development efforts;

* the lack of market acceptance of new products;
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* dependence on key personnel and changes in key personnel;

» the effect of consolidation of customers within key market channels;

* the ability to successfully grow recently acquired businesses;

+ the extent to which future business acquisitions are completed and acceptably integrated,

» the possible occurrence of product recalls or other defective or mislabeled product costs;

» the potential for loss of larger programs or key customer relationships;

*  changes in demand for our products, which may result from loss of brand reputation or customer goodwill;

* maintenance of competitive position with respect to other manufacturers;

» efficiencies in plant operations;

» the impact of any regulatory matters affecting our food business, including any required labeling changes and their impact on consumer demand;
»  stability of labor relations;

« the outcome of any litigation or arbitration;

« the impact, if any, of certain contingent liabilities associated with our withdrawal from a multiemployer pension plan;

*  the impact of fluctuations in our pension plan asset values on funding levels, contributions required and benefit costs;

*  changes in estimates in critical accounting judgments; and

»  certain other factors, including the information disclosed in our discussion of risk factors under Item 1A of our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our market risks have not changed materially from those disclosed in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)). Based upon this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2018 to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is 1) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and 2) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, in a manner that allows timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. No changes were made to our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during our most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed under Item 1A in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

(c) In November 2010, our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase authorization of 2,000,000 shares, of which 1,402,219 shares remained
authorized for future repurchases at March 31, 2018 . This share repurchase authorization does not have a stated expiration date. In the third quarter, we made the
following repurchases of our common stock:

Total Number Maximum

of Shares Number of

Purchased as Shares that

Total Part of May Yet be

Number of Average Publicly Purchased

Shares Price Paid Announced Under the

Period Purchased Per Share Plans Plans

January 1-31, 2018 — 3 = — 1,404,289
February 1-28, 2018 (D 2,070 $ 120.47 2,070 1,402,219
March 1-31, 2018 — g — — 1,402,219
Total 2,070 $ 120.47 2,070 1,402,219

(1) Represents shares that were repurchased in satisfaction of tax withholding obligations arising from the vesting of restricted stock granted to employees under
the Lancaster Colony Corporation Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Plan.

Item 6. Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits following Signatures.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION

(Registrant)
Date: May 1, 2018 By: /s/ DAVID A. CIESINSKI

David A. Ciesinski
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 1, 2018 By: /s DOUGLAS A. FELL

Douglas A. Fell

Treasurer, Vice President,

Assistant Secretary and

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Olfficer)
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LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

FORM 10-Q
MARCH 31, 2018
INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description Located at
10.1 * Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Employees and Consultants under the Lancaster Colony

Corporation 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan Filed herewith
10.2 * Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement for Employees and Consultants under the Lancaster Colony

Corporation 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan Filed herewith
31.1 Certification of CEO under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed herewith
31.2 Certification of CFO under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed herewith
32 Certification of CEO and CFO under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Furnished herewith
101.INS XBRL Instance Document Filed herewith
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document Filed herewith
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document Filed herewith
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document Filed herewith
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document Filed herewith
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document Filed herewith

*Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement in which any Director or any Executive Officer participates.
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Exhibit 10.1

LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION

FORM OF RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT

This Restricted Stock Award Agreement (this “ Agreement ) is dated as of ,20 by and between Lancaster Colony Corporation, an Ohio
corporation (the “ Company ), and , an Employee or Consultant for the Company (the “ Grantee ).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Company desires to award Restricted Stock to the Grantee, subject to the terms and conditions of the Lancaster Colony Corporation 2015
Omnibus Incentive Plan (the ““ Plan ) and the terms and conditions described below;

WHEREAS, the Grantee wishes to accept such award, subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the terms and conditions described below;

WHEREAS, the Company hereby confirms to the Grantee the grant, effective on ,20 _ (the “ Grant Date ), pursuant to the Plan, of
shares of Restricted Stock (“ Awarded Shares ) subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the terms and conditions described below; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto understand and agree that any terms used and not defined herein have the same meanings as in the Plan.
NOW, THEREFORE, the Company and the Grantee hereby agree as follows:

1. Definitions . As used in this Agreement:

(a) “ Compete ” means to do any of the following as an officer, director, employee, independent contractor, consultant, owner, partner,
member, shareholder, equity holder, or joint venturer of a competitor of the Company, or in any other capacity whatsoever with a competitor of the
Company: (a) to directly or indirectly work for a competitor; or (b) to directly or indirectly assist a competitor with one of its existing or prospective
goods or services that directly or indirectly competes, will directly or indirectly compete, or would directly or indirectly compete with a good or service
directly or indirectly offered, or that may or will be directly or indirectly offered, by the Company .

(b) Confidential Information  means any and all non-public information regarding the Company, its goods, or its services. “
Confidential Information ” includes any information that qualifies as a “trade secret” under the Uniform Trade Secrets Act or the common law of any
state. Additionally, the term “ Confidential Information > includes the aforementioned non-public information that has become public because a person
or entity breached an obligation to maintain its confidentiality.

(©) “ Innovations  shall mean all discoveries, developments, designs, ideas, innovations, improvements, inventions, formulas,
processes, techniques, and know-how (whether or not patentable or registrable under copyright, trademark or similar statutes) made, conceived, reduced
to practice or learned by the Grantee either alone or jointly with another while in the employ of the Company, or disclosed to a third party by the Grantee
within one (1) year of leaving its employ, that

(1) relate directly to the Company’s business or the production of any character of goods or materials sold or used by the
Company,

(i1) result from tasks assigned to the Grantee by the Company, or

(ii1) result from the use of premises or equipment owned, leased, or otherwise acquired by the Company.
(d) “ Protected Territory ” includes the following geographic areas: (a) all states and territories of the United States of America; and (b)

any other geographic area where it is reasonably necessary for the protection of the



Company’s legitimate interests to restrict Employee from competing and such restriction does not impose an undue hardship on Employee or disregard
the interests of the public.

(e) “ Retire ” shall mean, unless the Administrator determines otherwise, the Grantee’s termination of his or her employment (other
than by death or Disability).

® “Retirement Eligible” shall mean the Grantee has attained the age of 63 and has achieved ten years of Continuous Status as an
Employee or Consultant.

(2) “ Third Party  or *“ Third Parties ” means, individually or collectively, any current or prospective client, vendor, or other person or
entity in an existing or potential business relationship with the Company during Employee’s employment with the Company or within the two (2) years
following Employee’s termination of employment with the Company.*

(h) “ Third Party Confidential Information ” means any and all non-public information provided to Employee, on a confidential basis,
by or on behalf of any existing or potential client, vendor, or other person or entity in an existing or potential business relationship with the Company.
Additionally, the term “ Third Party Confidential Information ” includes the aforementioned non-public information that has become public because a
person or entity breached an obligation to maintain its confidentiality.

1) “Vesting Date” shall mean the earliest of a Change in Control (as such term is defined in the Plan) or the events described in
Section 3(b) or Section 3(c) .
Q)] For purposes of Sections 1(a)-(d) and Sections 1(g)-(h) , the “ Company ” shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its

parent, subsidiary, or affiliated companies.

2. Provisions of the Plan Controlling . The Grantee specifically understands and agrees that the Awarded Shares are being granted under the
Plan, and are being granted to the Grantee as Restricted Stock pursuant to the Plan, copies of which the Grantee acknowledges the Grantee has read and
understands and by which the Grantee agrees to be bound. The provisions of the Plan are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of a conflict between the
terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement, the provisions of the Plan will control.

3. Vesting of Awarded Shares .

(a) Except as provided in Section 3(b) and 3(c) , the Awarded Shares shall be forfeited to the Company for no consideration in the
event the Grantee (i) voluntarily ceases to retain Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant, other than for Good Reason (as such terms are defined
in the Plan), prior to the third anniversary of the Grant Date or (ii) ceases to retain Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant as a result of being
terminated by the Company for Cause, prior to the third anniversary of the Grant Date.

(b) The Awarded Shares shall be fully vested in the Grantee and no longer subject to a risk of forfeiture pursuant to Section 3(a) upon
the occurrence of the earlier of the following events:

1) the date on which the Grantee dies or ceases to retain Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant as a result of the
Grantee’s Disability;

(i1) the date upon which the Grantee terminates his or her Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant for Good Reason;
(iii) the date upon which the Company terminates the Grantee’s Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant without
Cause; and
>iv) the third anniversary of the Grant Date.
(©) Unless the Administrator determines otherwise, if Grantee is Retirement Eligible as of the Grant Date:
(1) one third of the Awarded Shares shall be fully vested in the Grantee and no longer subject to a risk of forfeiture pursuant to

Section 3(a) if Grantee Retires after the first anniversary of the Grant Date but before the second anniversary of the Grant Date; and



(ii) two thirds of the Awarded Shares shall be fully vested in the Grantee and no longer subject to a risk of forfeiture pursuant
to Section 3(a) if Grantee Retires after the second anniversary of the Grant Date but before the third anniversary of the Grant Date.

4. Dividend and Voting Rights .

(a) Dividends payable with respect to the Awarded Shares during the period prior to the Vesting Date shall be paid to the Grantee in the
same manner as paid on the Common Stock of the Company, unless the Grantee forfeits the Awarded Shares pursuant to Section 3(a) hereof, in which
case the Grantee shall also forfeit the right to receive any dividends not paid prior to such forfeiture.

(b) The Grantee shall have the right to vote any Awarded Shares during the period prior to the Vesting Date; provided , that such voting
rights shall lapse with respect to any Awarded Shares that are forfeited to the Company pursuant to this Agreement.

5. Additional Shares . If the Company pays a stock dividend or declares a stock split on or with respect to any of its Common Stock, or otherwise
distributes securities of the Company to the holders of its Common Stock, the shares of stock or other securities of the Company issued with respect to the
Awarded Shares then subject to the restrictions contained in this Agreement shall be held in escrow and shall be distributed to the Grantee on the Vesting Date,
unless the Grantee forfeits the Awarded Shares pursuant to Section 3(a) hereof, in which case the Grantee shall also forfeit the right to receive such stock or other
securities. If the Company shall distribute to its shareholders shares of stock of another corporation, the shares of stock of such other corporation distributed with
respect to the Awarded Shares then subject to the restrictions contained in this Agreement shall be held in escrow and shall be distributed to the Grantee on such
Vesting Date, unless the Grantee forfeits the Awarded Shares pursuant to Section 2(a) hereof, in which case the Grantee shall also forfeit the right to receive such
stock.

6. Effect of Change in Control . Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, including Section 3 , in the event of a Change in
Control, the Awarded Shares will be affected in accordance with Section 17 of the Plan.

7. Adjustments . The Awarded Shares shall be subject to adjustment in accordance with Section 17 of the Plan.

8. Legends . To the extent certificates representing the Awarded Shares are issued to the Grantee pursuant to this Agreement, such certificates

shall have endorsed thereon legends substantially as follows (or in such other form as counsel for the Company may determine is necessary or appropriate):

“The shares represented by this certificate are subject to restrictions set forth in a Restricted Stock Award Agreement with this Company dated
,20__ , acopy of which Agreement is available for inspection at the offices of the Company or will be made available upon request.”

9. Withholding Taxes . To the extent that the Company is required to withhold federal, state, local or foreign taxes in connection with any
delivery of Awarded Shares to the Grantee, and the amounts available to the Company for such withholding are insufficient, it shall be a condition to the receipt of
such delivery that the Grantee make arrangements satisfactory to the Company for payment of the balance of such taxes required to be withheld. The Grantee may
elect that all or any part of such withholding requirement be satisfied by retention by the Company of a portion of the Awarded Shares to be delivered to the
Grantee. If such election is made, the Awarded Shares so retained shall be credited against such withholding requirement at the Fair Market Value (as such term is
defined in the Plan) of a Share on the date of such delivery, with any fractional Shares that would otherwise be delivered being rounded up to the next nearest
whole Share. In no event shall the Fair Market Value of Awarded Shares to be withheld pursuant to this Section 9 to satisfy applicable withholding taxes in
connection with the benefit exceed the minimum amount of taxes required to be withheld.

10. Notices . Any notices required or permitted by the terms of this Agreement or the Plan must be in writing, shall be delivered to the Grantee at
his or her address on file with the Company or to the Company addressed as follows (or to such other address or addresses of which notice in the same manner has
previously been given), and will be deemed to have been duly given (a) when delivered in person, (b) when dispatched by electronic mail or facsimile transfer, (c)
one business day after having been dispatched by a nationally recognized overnight courier service or (d) three business days after being sent by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid:

Lancaster Colony Corporation
380 Polaris Parkway, Suite 400
Westerville, Ohio 43082
Attention: Corporate Secretary



11. No Employment Contract; Right to Terminate Employment . The grant of the Awarded Shares to the Grantee is a voluntary, discretionary
award being made on a one-time basis and it does not constitute a commitment to make any future awards. The grant of the Awarded Shares and any payments
made hereunder will not be considered salary or other compensation for purposes of any severance pay or similar allowance, except as otherwise required by law.
Nothing in this Agreement will give the Grantee any right to continue employment or to Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant with the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries, as the case may be, or interfere in any way with the right of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to terminate the employment of the Grantee
at any time.

12. Relation to Other Benefits . Any economic or other benefit to the Grantee under this Agreement or the Plan shall not be taken into account in
determining any benefits to which the Grantee may be entitled under any profit-sharing, retirement or other benefit or compensation plan maintained by the
Company or a subsidiary of the Company and shall not affect the amount of any life insurance coverage available to any beneficiary under any life insurance plan
covering employees of the Company or a Subsidiary of the Company.

13. Innovations . In consideration of the Awarded Shares, the Grantee agrees:

(a) For purposes of this Section 13 , the “ Company ” shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its parent, subsidiary, or
affiliated companies. All Innovations shall belong to and be the exclusive property of the Company.

(b) The Grantee will promptly disclose all Innovations to the Company and will assign all of the Grantee’s right, title and interest to
such Innovations, whether in the United States and any foreign country, to the Company and its successors and assigns. The Grantee will from time to
time, upon request and at the expense of the Company, sign all instruments necessary for the filing and prosecution of any copyrights, patents, mask
works, and applications for letters patent of the United States or any foreign country which the Company may desire to file upon such inventions without
additional compensation. The Grantee will render all reasonable assistance to the Company and its agents in preparing applications and other documents
and do all things that may be reasonable and necessary to protect the rights of the Company and vest in it all such inventions, discoveries, applications,
and patents, even if the Grantee is no longer employed by the Company, provided that the Company compensates the Grantee at a reasonable rate for time
actually spent by the Grantee on assistance occurring after termination of employment.

(©) That upon termination of employment with the Company for any reason, the Grantee will immediately deliver to the Company all
drawings, blueprints, sketches, notebooks, formulae, notes, manuals and other documents reflecting Confidential Information or Innovations, and the
Grantee will not retain any copies or versions of such information.

14. Improper Use or Disclosure of Confidential Information . In consideration of the Awarded Shares, the Grantee agrees to the following terms
on maintaining confidentiality of certain non-public information:

(a) For purposes of this Section 14 , the “ Company > shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its parent, subsidiary, or
affiliated companies.

(b) The Grantee agrees that during employment with the Company, and at any time thereafter regardless of the reasons for termination,
the Grantee will not directly or indirectly do any of the following:

1) use, or attempt to use, any Confidential Information or Third Party Confidential Information, except as required for the
performance of the Grantee’s lawful job duties for the Company;

(i1) disclose, or attempt to disclose, any Confidential Information to any person or entity who, at the time of the disclosure or
attempted disclosure, does not have access to the information that was authorized by an agent of the Company with actual authority to provide
such access; and/or

(iii) disclose, or attempt to disclose, any Third Party Confidential Information to any person or entity who, at the time of the
disclosure or attempted disclosure, does not have access to the information that was authorized by (1) an agent of the Company with actual
authority to provide such access and/or (2) an agent of the owner of the Third Party Confidential Information with actual authority to provide
such access.

() Nothing in Section 14 of this Agreement restricts the Grantee from exercising any rights conferred by Section 7 of the National
Labor Relations Act. Additionally, nothing in Section 14 of this Agreement restricts the Grantee from exercising any other rights that are conferred by
federal, state, and/or local law and that an agreement such as this is prohibited by law from restricting. Further, nothing in Section 14 of this Agreement
restricts the Grantee from reporting conduct the Grantee reasonably, and in good faith, believes to be a violation of federal, state,



and/or local law. However, in exercising such rights or in making such reports, the Grantee must act in good faith and not unreasonably or unnecessarily
disclose any Confidential Information or Third Party Confidential Information. Furthermore, if any Confidential Information is to be disclosed outside of
the Company in exercising such rights or in making such reports, then the Grantee is required to provide prior written notice of the disclosure to Company
management, so long as such prior written notice is not prohibited by law. If any Third Party Confidential Information is to be disclosed outside of the
Company in exercising such rights or in making such reports, then the Grantee is required to provide prior written notice of the disclosure to Company
management and to the management of any affected owner of Third Party Confidential Information, so long as such prior written notice is not prohibited
by law. The Grantee must provide the prior written notice on or before the moment the Grantee makes the disclosure.

15. Unfair Competition . In consideration of the Awarded Shares, the Grantee agrees to be prohibited from engaging in unfair competition with
the Company both during and after employment as follows:

(a) For purposes of this Section 15 , the “ Company > shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its parent, subsidiary, or
affiliated companies.

(b) The Grantee acknowledges that, by working for the Company, he or she will: (i) have access to, learn about, and work with the
Company’s valuable and unique Confidential Information, all of which the Company developed through substantial, time, effort, and expense; (ii) be in
contact and develop relationships with Third Parties, the contacts and relationships with whom the Company developed through substantial time, effort,
and expense; and (iii) receive valuable training, knowledge, and expertise, some or all of which the Grantee gained in whole or in part through substantial
time, effort, and expense by the Company. For these reasons, the Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the Company has legitimate interests in
restricting the Grantee’s competitive activities both during and after employment with the Company and that the restrictions contained in this Section 15
are necessary to protect those legitimate business interests, are designed to eliminate competition that would be unfair to the Company, are reasonable in
time and scope, and do not confer a benefit upon the Company which is disproportionate to any detriment to the Grantee.

(©) The Grantee agrees that during employment with the Company, and for a period of one (1) year thereafter regardless of the reasons
for termination, the Grantee will not Compete with the Company, or prepare to Compete with the Company, within the Protected Territory. This
restriction applies regardless of whether the Grantee is physically present in the Protected Territory engaging in prohibited competition or whether the
Grantee uses means of communication, such as the telephone or the Internet, to engage in prohibited competition within the Protected Territory while
physically outside of the Protected Territory. Notwithstanding the foregoing, n othing in this Agreement shall prohibit the Grantee from purchasing or
owning less than five percent (5%) of the publicly traded securities of any competitor of the Company’s, provided that such ownership represents a
passive investment and that the Grantee is not a controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such competitor.

(d) The Grantee agrees that during employment with the Company and for a period of two (2) years thereafter regardless of the reasons
for termination, the Grantee will not, to any tangible or intangible detriment of the Company, directly or indirectly do any of the following:

(1) solicit in any way, or attempt to solicit in any way, any business from a Third Party;
(i1) accept any business from, or attempt to accept any business from, a Third Party; and/or
(iii) induce in any way, or attempt to induce in any way, a Third Party to terminate or diminish in any way its existing or

prospective business relationship with the Company.

(e) The Grantee agrees that during employment with the Company and for a period of two (2) years thereafter regardless of the reasons
for termination, the Grantee will not directly or indirectly do any of the following:

(1) solicit in any way, or attempt to solicit in any way, any current or prospective employee of the Company to decline any
prospective employment with the Company or to terminate his or her current employment with the Company; and/or

(ii) induce in any way, or attempt to induce in any way, any current or prospective employee of the Company to decline any
prospective employment with the Company or to terminate his or her current employment with the Company.

16. Miscellaneous and Remedies . In consideration of the Awarded Shares, the Grantee agrees to be bound by the following:




(a) For purposes of this Section 16 , the “ Company > shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its parent, subsidiary, or
affiliated companies.

(b) The Grantee represents that the Grantee currently has no restrictions on competition imposed by any agreement with any prior
employer, including without limitation any non-competition restriction or non-solicitation restriction, that would prevent the Grantee from working for the
Company and performing all lawful duties that the Company may require of the Grantee. By signing this Agreement, the Grantee certifies that the
Grantee has made every good faith effort to determine whether any such restrictions exist. The Grantee agrees that the Grantee is prohibited from using or
disclosing any confidential business information or trade secrets of a prior employer. This prohibits without limitation any disclosure of such information
or trade secrets to any employee of the Company or any use of such information or trade secrets as part of the Grantee’s job duties with the Company. The
Grantee further acknowledges that the Company will never directly or indirectly request Employee to improperly use or disclose any prior employer’s
confidential information or trade secrets. If any Company employee does make such a request, the Grantee shall immediately report the request to the
Company’s Human Resources Department.

(©) The Grantee agrees to notify any of the Grantee’s actual or prospective employers of the existence and terms of this Agreement and
agrees that the Company may notify such employers of the terms of this Agreement as well.

(d) The Grantee agrees that any breach, threatened breach, or attempted breach by the Grantee of Sections 13 , 14 , and/or 15 of this
Agreement will cause immediate and irreparable harm to the Company that cannot be adequately remedied by money damages and will entitle the
Company to immediate injunctive relief and/or specific performance in any court of competent jurisdiction, as well as to all other legal or equitable
remedies and Uniform Trade Secrets Act remedies, where applicable, to which the Company may be entitled.

(e) If a jury or court of competent jurisdiction finds that the Grantee has breached Section 14 of this Agreement, and this finding
becomes final after any appeals are exhausted, then the Grantee is liable to the Company, for each breach, in an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the
Grantee’s last total annual compensation provided by the Company. The Grantee agrees that if the Grantee breaches Section 14 of this Agreement then
Company will suffer actual damages in an amount that would be difficult if not impossible to determine and that the liquidated damages imposed for a
breach of Section 14 of this Agreement represent the damages fairly estimated by the parties to result from any breach and do not constitute a penalty.
Furthermore, the Grantee agrees that the imposition of these liquidated damages does not demonstrate or imply that the Company would not suffer
irreparable harm from any breach of this Agreement and does not render improper the award of injunctive relief.

§3) The Grantee agrees that if the Grantee breaches, threatens to breach, or attempts to breach any of the provisions of Section 15(¢c)
following termination of employment with the Company, then the post-employment restricted period for Section 15(c) shall be extended to encompass
the period of one (1) year from the date the Company obtains a court order providing preliminary or permanent injunctive relief enjoining the Grantee
from any or all acts and/or omissions contrary to Section 15(c) . Similarly, if the Grantee breaches, threatens to breach, or attempts to breach any of the
provisions of Sections 15(d) and/or 15(e) following termination of employment with the Company, then the restricted period for Sections 15(d) and/or
15(e) shall be extended to encompass the period of two (2) years from the date the Company obtains a court order providing preliminary or permanent
injunctive relief enjoining the Grantee from any acts and/or omissions contrary to Sections 15(d) and/or 15(e) .

(2) If the Company is, in its sole judgment, compelled to assert a cause of action against the Grantee to enforce or remedy any breach,
threatened breach, or attempted breach of Sections 13 | 14 , and/or 15 of this Agreement, then the Grantee agrees to reimburse the Company for its
reasonable attorneys’ fees and other reasonable expenses incurred in the investigation and successful prosecution or settlement of any such cause of action
in addition to any damages or other remedies obtained by the Company.

(h) If any part of the restrictions contained in Section 15 of this Agreement are found unenforceable by any court of competent
jurisdiction, then the parties agree that they intend for the court to enforce the restrictions to the extent reasonable or enforceable and to not decline
enforcement. The parties agree that, in any litigation over Section 15 of this Agreement, they will jointly advocate this position to the court and/or any

jury.

17. Information . Information about the Grantee and the Grantee’s participation in the Plan may be collected, recorded and held, used and
disclosed for any purpose related to the administration of the Plan. The Grantee understands that such processing of this information may need to be carried out by
the Company and its Subsidiaries and by third party administrators whether such persons are located within the Grantee’s country or elsewhere, including the
United States of



America. The Grantee consents to the processing of information relating to the Grantee and the Grantee’s participation in the Plan in any one or more of the ways
referred to above.

18. Benefit of Agreement . Subject to the provisions of the Plan and the other provisions hereof, this Agreement is for the benefit of and is
binding on the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

19. Entire Agreement . This Agreement, together with the Plan, embodies the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements and understandings relating to the subject matter hereof. No statement,
representation, warranty, covenant or agreement not expressly set forth in this Agreement shall affect or be used to interpret, change or restrict the express terms
and provisions of this Agreement; provided , however , in any event, this Agreement shall be subject to and governed by the Plan. The Administrator shall have
authority, subject to the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, to establish, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan, and to make
all other determinations that are, in the judgment of the Administrator, necessary or desirable for the administration of the Plan. The Administrator may correct any
defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or in this Agreement in the manner and to the extent it shall deem expedient to carry the Plan
into effect and it shall be the sole and final judge of such expediency. All actions by the Administrator under the provisions of this Section 19 shall be conclusive
for all purposes. The Grantee specifically understands and agrees that the Awarded Shares are being granted under the Plan, copies of which Plan the Grantee
acknowledges the Grantee has read, understands and by which the Grantee agrees to be bound.

20. Amendments . Any amendment to the Plan shall be deemed to be an amendment to this Agreement to the extent that the amendment is
applicable hereto; provided , however , that no amendment shall adversely affect the rights of the Grantee with respect to the Awarded Shares without the
Grantee’s consent.

21. Severability . It is the intention and agreement of the Company and the Grantee that this Agreement shall be construed in such a manner as to
impose only those restrictions on the conduct of the Grantee that are reasonable in light of the circumstances as they then exist and as are necessary to assure the
Company of the intended benefit of this Agreement. In the event that one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall be invalidated for any reason by a court
of competent jurisdiction, any provision so invalidated shall be deemed to be separable from the other provisions hereof, and the remaining provisions hereof shall
continue to be valid and fully enforceable.

22. Governing Law . This Agreement is made under, and shall be construed in accordance with the internal substantive laws of the State of Ohio.
23. Waivers and Consents . The terms and provisions of this Agreement may be waived, or consent for the departure therefrom granted, only by

written document executed by the party entitled to the benefits of such terms or provisions. No such waiver or consent shall be deemed to be or shall constitute a
waiver or consent with respect to any other terms or provisions of this Agreement, whether or not similar. Each such waiver or consent shall be effective only in
the specific instance and for the purpose for which it was given, and shall not constitute a continuing waiver or consent.

24. Electronic Delivery and Consent to Electronic Participation . The Company mays, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents
related to the Awarded Shares and participation in the Plan or future grants of Restricted Stock that may be granted under the Plan by electronic means.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Grantee hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and to participate in the
Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or another third party designated by the Company, including the
acceptance of Restricted Stock grants and the execution of award agreements through electronic signature.
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Executed in the name and on behalf of the Company in Westerville, Ohio as of , 20

LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION

By:

Name: Matthew R. Shurte

Title: General Counsel

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT

Grantee hereby: (a) acknowledges receiving a copy of the Plan, which has either been previously delivered or is provided with this Agreement, and
represents that he or she is familiar with and understands all provisions of the Plan and this Agreement; (b) voluntarily and knowingly accepts this Agreement and
the Awarded Shares granted to him or her under this Agreement subject to all provisions of the Plan and this Agreement; and (c) represents that he or she
understands that the acceptance of this Agreement through an on-line or electronic system, if applicable, carries the same legal significance as if he or she manually
signed the Agreement. Grantee further acknowledges receiving a copy of the Company’s most recent annual report to shareholders and other communications
routinely distributed to the Company’s shareholders and a copy of the prospectus pertaining to the Plan.

Grantee Name:




Exhibit 10.2

LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION

FORM OF STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

This Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement (this “ Agreement ) is dated as of ,20 by and between Lancaster Colony Corporation, an

Ohio corporation (the “ Company *’), and , an Employee or Consultant for the Company (the “ Grantee ).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Company desires to award Stock Appreciation Rights to the Grantee, subject to the terms and conditions of the Lancaster Colony

Corporation 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “ Plan ) and the terms and conditions described below;

WHEREAS, the Grantee wishes to accept such award, subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the terms and conditions described below;

WHEREAS, the Company hereby confirms to the Grantee the grant, effective on ,20 _ (the “ Grant Date ), pursuant to the Plan, of

Stock Appreciation Rights (“ SARs ) subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and the terms and conditions described below, which SARs are a right to
receive Shares with a Fair Market Value (as such term is defined in the Plan) equal to 100% of the Spread at the time of exercise; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto understand and agree that any terms used and not defined herein have the same meanings as in the Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Company and the Grantee hereby agree as follows:

1. Definitions . As used in this Agreement:
(a) “ Base Price ” means $ , which is not less than the Fair Market Value of a Share on the Grant Date.
(b) “ Compete ” means for the Grantee to do any of the following as an officer, director, employee, independent contractor, consultant,

owner, partner, member, shareholder, equity holder, or joint venture of a competitor of the Company, or in any other capacity whatsoever with a
competitor of the Company: (a) to directly or indirectly work for a competitor; or (b) to directly or indirectly assist a competitor with one of its existing or
prospective goods or services that directly or indirectly competes, will directly or indirectly compete, or would directly or indirectly compete with a good
or service directly or indirectly offered, or that may or will be directly or indirectly offered, by the Company .

(c) “ Confidential Information ” means any and all non-public information regarding the Company, its goods, or its services.
Confidential Information  includes any information that qualifies as a “trade secret” under the Uniform Trade Secrets Act or the common law of any
state. Additionally, the term “ Confidential Information ” includes the aforementioned non-public information that has become public because a person
or entity breached an obligation to maintain its confidentiality

(d) “ Innovations ” shall mean all discoveries, developments, designs, ideas, innovations, improvements, inventions, formulas,
processes, techniques, and know-how (whether or not patentable or registrable under copyright, trademark or similar statutes) made, conceived, reduced
to practice or learned by the Grantee either alone or jointly with another while in the employ of the Company, or disclosed to a third party by the Grantee
within one (1) year of leaving its employ, that

1) relate directly to the Company’s business or the production of any character of goods or materials sold or used by the
Company,



(ii) result from tasks assigned to the Grantee by the Company, or
(iii) result from the use of premises or equipment owned, leased, or otherwise acquired by the Company.

(e) “ Protected Territory ” includes the following geographic areas: (a) all states and territories of the United States of America; and (b)
any other geographic area where it is reasonably necessary for the protection of the Company’s legitimate interests to restrict the Grantee from competing
and such restriction does not impose an undue hardship on the Grantee or disregard the interests of the public.

) “ Spread ” means the excess of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date on which a SAR is exercised over the Base Price.

(2 “ Third Party > or *“ Third Parties  mean, individually or collectively, any current or prospective client, vendor, or other person or
entity in an existing or potential business relationship with the Company during the Grantee’s employment with the Company or within the two (2) years
following the Grantee’s termination of employment with the Company.

(h) “ Third Party Confidential Information ” means any and all non-public information provided to the Grantee, on a confidential
basis, by or on behalf of any existing or potential client, vendor, or other person or entity in an existing or potential business relationship with the
Company. Additionally, the term “ Third Party Confidential Information ™ includes the aforementioned non-public information that has become public
because a person or entity breached an obligation to maintain its confidentiality.

(1) For purposes of Sections 1(b)-(e) and Sections 1(g)-(h) , the “ Company > shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its
parent, subsidiary, or affiliated companies.
2. Vesting of SARs . The SARs shall become exercisable as follows:

(a) one-third of the SARs shall become exercisable on the first anniversary of the Grant Date if the Grantee shall have retained

Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant through such date;

(b) an additional one-third of the SARs shall become exercisable on the second anniversary of the Grant Date if the Grantee shall have
retained Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant through such date;

(c) the remaining one-third of the SARs shall become exercisable on the third anniversary of the Grant Date if the Grantee shall have
retained Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant through such date;

provided , that notwithstanding anything in this Section 2 to the contrary, if Grantee is Retirement Eligible as of the Grant Date, any SARs that have not become
exercisable prior to the date of Grantee’s Retirement shall become exercisable, subject to Section 4 , in accordance with the schedule set forth in clauses (a) and
(b) of this Section 2 but without regard to whether Grantee has retained Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant. In calculating the one-third amounts
described in Sections 2(a) and (b) , fractional SARs shall be rounded down to the nearest whole SAR for each of the first two anniversaries of the Grant Date, and
the remaining SARs shall be included with those SARs that become exercisable on the third anniversary of the Grant Date. To the extent exercisable, the SARs
may be exercised from time to time in accordance with the Plan and this Agreement. To the extent the SARs or any portion thereof do not become exercisable as
provided in this Section 2 , such unexercisable SARs or portion thereof shall be forfeited to the Company for no consideration. For purposes of this Agreement: “
Retirement ” shall mean, unless the Administrator determines otherwise, the Grantee’s termination of his or her employment (other than by death or Disability) at
least six months after the Grant Date. “ Retirement Eligible ” shall mean the Grantee has attained the age of 63 and has achieved ten years of Continuous Status as
an Employee or Consultant; and provided further , that notwithstanding anything in this Section 2 to the contrary, any unexercisable SARs shall become
immediately exercisable on (A) the date upon which the Grantee terminates his or her Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant for Good Reason, as such
terms are defined in the Plan; (B) the date upon which the Company terminates the Grantee’s Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant without Cause; or
(C) upon the death of Grantee.



3. Exercise of SARs .

(a) To the extent exercisable as provided in Section 2 or Section 5 of this Agreement, the SARs may be exercised in whole or in part by
delivery to the Company of a statement in form and substance satisfactory to the Committee specifying the number of SARs to be exercised.

(b) Upon exercise, the Company will issue to the Grantee the number of Shares equal to the quotient of (i) the product of (A) the Spread
multiplied by (B) the number of SARs exercised divided by (ii) the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of exercise, with such quotient rounded
down to the nearest whole Share.

4. Termination of SARs . The SARs shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of the following:

(a) 90 days after the Grantee ceases to retain Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant other than upon the Grantee’s death or
Disability or Retirement;

(b) 180 days after the Grantee ceases to retain Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant as a result of the Grantee’s Disability;
(c) One year after the Grantee ceases to retain Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant as a result of the Grantee’s death; and
(d) Five years from the Grant Date.

5. Effect of Change in Control . Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, including Section 2 , in the event of a Change in

Control (as such term is defined in the Plan), the SARs will be affected in accordance with Section 17 of the Plan.

6. Transferability . No SAR may be transferred by the Grantee other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. The SARs may be
exercised during a Grantee’s lifetime only by the Grantee or, in the event of the Grantee legal incapacity, by the Grantee’s guardian or legal representative acting in
a fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Grantee under state law and court supervision. The SARs may be exercised after the Grantee’s death by (a) the Grantee’s
designated beneficiary, provided such beneficiary has been designated prior to the Grantee’s death in a form acceptable to the Committee, or (b) the personal
representative of the Grantee’s estate or by the person(s) to whom the SARs are transferred pursuant to the Grantee’s will or in accordance with the laws of descent
and distribution.

7. Compliance with Law . The SARs shall not be exercisable if such exercise would involve a violation of any applicable federal or state
securities law, and the Company hereby agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with any applicable federal and state securities law.

8. Adjustments . The SARs shall be subject to adjustment in accordance with Section 17 of the Plan.

9. Withholding Taxes . To the extent that the Company is required to withhold federal, state, local or foreign taxes in connection with the

exercise of the SARs, and the amounts available to the Company for such withholding are insufficient, it shall be a condition to such exercise that the Grantee
make arrangements satisfactory to the Company for payment of the balance of such taxes required to be withheld. The Grantee may elect that all or any part of
such withholding requirement be satisfied by retention by the Company of a portion of the Shares to be delivered to the Grantee. If such election is made, the
Shares so retained shall be credited against such withholding requirement at the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of such delivery, with any fractional
Shares that would otherwise be delivered being rounded up to the next nearest whole Share. In no event shall the Fair Market Value of Shares to be withheld
pursuant to this Section 9 to satisfy applicable withholding taxes in connection with the benefit exceed the minimum amount of taxes required to be withheld.



10. Notices . Any notices required or permitted by the terms of this Agreement or the Plan must be in writing, shall be delivered to the Grantee at
his or her address on file with the Company or to the Company addressed as follows (or to such other address or addresses of which notice in the same manner has
previously been given), and will be deemed to have been duly given (a) when delivered in person, (b) when dispatched by electronic mail or facsimile transfer, (c)
one business day after having been dispatched by a nationally recognized overnight courier service or (d) three business days after being sent by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid:

Lancaster Colony Corporation
380 Polaris Parkway, Suite 400
Westerville, Ohio 43082
Attention: Corporate Secretary

11. No Employment Contract: Right to Terminate Employment . The grant of SARs to the Grantee is a voluntary, discretionary award being
made on a one-time basis and it does not constitute a commitment to make any future awards. The grant of the SARs and any payments made hereunder will not be
considered salary or other compensation for purposes of any severance pay or similar allowance, except as otherwise required by law. Nothing in this Agreement
will give the Grantee any right to continue employment or to Continuous Status as an Employee or Consultant with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, as the
case may be, or interfere in any way with the right of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to terminate the employment of the Grantee at any time.

12. Relation to Other Benefits . Any economic or other benefit to the Grantee under this Agreement or the Plan shall not be taken into account in
determining any benefits to which the Grantee may be entitled under any profit-sharing, retirement or other benefit or compensation plan maintained by the
Company or a Subsidiary and shall not affect the amount of any life insurance coverage available to any beneficiary under any life insurance plan covering
employees of the Company or a Subsidiary.

13. Innovations . In consideration of the awarded SARs, the Grantee agrees:

(a) For purposes of this Section 13 , the “ Company > shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its parent, subsidiary, or
affiliated companies. All Innovations shall belong to and be the exclusive property of the Company.

(b) The Grantee will promptly disclose all Innovations to the Company and will assign all of the Grantee’s right, title and interest to
such Innovations, whether in the United States and any foreign country, to the Company and its successors and assigns. The Grantee will from time to
time, upon request and at the expense of the Company, sign all instruments necessary for the filing and prosecution of any copyrights, patents, mask
works, and applications for letters patent of the United States or any foreign country which the Company may desire to file upon such inventions without
additional compensation. The Grantee will render all reasonable assistance to the Company and its agents in preparing applications and other documents
and do all things that may be reasonable and necessary to protect the rights of the Company and vest in it all such inventions, discoveries, applications,
and patents, even if the Grantee is no longer employed by the Company, provided that the Company compensates the Grantee at a reasonable rate for time
actually spent by the Grantee on assistance occurring after termination of employment.

(©) That upon termination of employment with the Company for any reason, the Grantee will immediately deliver to the Company all
drawings, blueprints, sketches, notebooks, formulae, notes, manuals and other documents reflecting Confidential Information or Innovations, and the
Grantee will not retain any copies or versions of such information.

14. Improper Use or Disclosure of Confidential Information . In consideration of the awarded SARs, the Grantee agrees to the following terms
on maintaining confidentiality of certain non-public information:

(a) For purposes of this Section 14 , the “ Company ” shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its parent, subsidiary, or
affiliated companies.

(b) The Grantee agrees that during employment with the Company, and at any time thereafter regardless of the reasons for termination,
the Grantee will not directly or indirectly do any of the following:

1 use, or attempt to use, any Confidential Information or Third Party Confidential Information, except as required for the
performance of the Grantee’s lawful job duties for the Company;



(ii) disclose, or attempt to disclose, any Confidential Information to any person or entity who, at the time of the disclosure or
attempted disclosure, does not have access to the information that was authorized by an agent of the Company with actual authority to provide
such access; and/or

(iii) disclose, or attempt to disclose, any Third Party Confidential Information to any person or entity who, at the time of the
disclosure or attempted disclosure, does not have access to the information that was authorized by (1) an agent of the Company with actual
authority to provide such access and/or (2) an agent of the owner of the Third Party Confidential Information with actual authority to provide
such access.

() Nothing in Section 14 of this Agreement restricts the Grantee from exercising any rights conferred by Section 7 of the National
Labor Relations Act. Additionally, nothing in Section 14 of this Agreement restricts the Grantee from exercising any other rights that are conferred by
federal, state, and/or local law and that an agreement such as this is prohibited by law from restricting. Further, nothing in Section 14 of this Agreement
restricts the Grantee from reporting conduct the Grantee reasonably, and in good faith, believes to be a violation of federal, state, and/or local law.
However, in exercising such rights or in making such reports, the Grantee must act in good faith and not unreasonably or unnecessarily disclose any
Confidential Information or Third Party Confidential Information. Furthermore, if any Confidential Information is to be disclosed outside of the Company
in exercising such rights or in making such reports, then the Grantee is required to provide prior written notice of the disclosure to Company management,
so long as such prior written notice is not prohibited by law. If any Third Party Confidential Information is to be disclosed outside of the Company in
exercising such rights or in making such reports, then the Grantee is required to provide prior written notice of the disclosure to Company management
and to the management of any affected owner of Third Party Confidential Information, so long as such prior written notice is not prohibited by law. The
Grantee must provide the prior written notice on or before the moment the Grantee makes the disclosure.

15. Unfair Competition . In consideration of the awarded SARs, the Grantee agrees to be prohibited from engaging in unfair competition with
the Company both during and after employment as follows:

(a) For purposes of this Section 15 , the “ Company > shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its parent, subsidiary, or
affiliated companies.

(b) The Grantee acknowledges that, by working for the Company, he or she will: (i) have access to, learn about, and work with the
Company’s valuable and unique Confidential Information, all of which the Company developed through substantial, time, effort, and expense; (ii) be in
contact and develop relationships with Third Parties, the contacts and relationships with whom the Company developed through substantial time, effort,
and expense; and (iii) receive valuable training, knowledge, and expertise, some or all of which the Grantee gained in whole or in part through substantial
time, effort, and expense by the Company. For these reasons, the Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the Company has legitimate interests in
restricting the Grantee’s competitive activities both during and after employment with the Company and that the restrictions contained in this Section 15
are necessary to protect those legitimate business interests, are designed to eliminate competition that would be unfair to the Company, are reasonable in
time and scope, and do not confer a benefit upon the Company which is disproportionate to any detriment to the Grantee.

(©) The Grantee agrees that during employment with the Company, and for a period of one (1) year thereafter regardless of the reasons
for termination, the Grantee will not Compete with the Company, or prepare to Compete with the Company, within the Protected Territory. This
restriction applies regardless of whether the Grantee is physically present in the Protected Territory engaging in prohibited competition or whether the
Grantee uses means of communication, such as the telephone or the Internet, to engage in prohibited competition within the Protected Territory while
physically outside of the Protected Territory. Notwithstanding the foregoing, n othing in this Agreement shall prohibit the Grantee from purchasing or
owning less than five percent (5%) of the publicly traded securities of any competitor of the Company, provided that such ownership represents a passive
investment and that the Grantee is not a controlling person of, or a member of a group that controls, such competitor.

(d) The Grantee agrees that during employment with the Company and for a period of two (2) years thereafter regardless of the reasons
for termination, the Grantee will not, to any tangible or intangible detriment of the Company, directly or indirectly do any of the following:

1) solicit in any way, or attempt to solicit in any way, any business from a Third Party;



(ii) accept any business from, or attempt to accept any business from, a Third Party; and/or

(iii) induce in any way, or attempt to induce in any way, a Third Party to terminate or diminish in any way its existing or
prospective business relationship with the Company.

(e) The Grantee agrees that during employment with the Company and for a period of two (2) years thereafter regardless of the reasons
for termination, the Grantee will not directly or indirectly do any of the following:

(1) solicit in any way, or attempt to solicit in any way, any current or prospective employee of the Company to decline any
prospective employment with the Company or to terminate his or her current employment with the Company; and/or

(i1) induce in any way, or attempt to induce in any way, any current or prospective employee of the Company to decline any
prospective employment with the Company or to terminate his or her current employment with the Company.

16. Miscellaneous and Remedies . In consideration of the awarded SARs, the Grantee agrees to be bound by the following:

(a) For purposes of this Section 16 , the “ Company > shall mean Lancaster Colony Corporation or any of its parent, subsidiary, or
affiliated companies.

(b) The Grantee represents that the Grantee currently has no restrictions on competition imposed by any agreement with any prior
employer, including without limitation any non-competition restriction or non-solicitation restriction, that would prevent the Grantee from working for the
Company and performing all lawful duties that the Company may require of the Grantee. By signing this Agreement, the Grantee certifies that the
Grantee has made every good faith effort to determine whether any such restrictions exist. The Grantee agrees that the Grantee is prohibited from using or
disclosing any confidential business information or trade secrets of a prior employer. This prohibits without limitation any disclosure of such information
or trade secrets to any employee of the Company or any use of such information or trade secrets as part of the Grantee’s job duties with the Company. The
Grantee further acknowledges that the Company will never directly or indirectly request Employee to improperly use or disclose any prior employer’s
confidential information or trade secrets. If any Company employee does make such a request, the Grantee shall immediately report the request to the
Company’s Human Resources Department.

() The Grantee agrees to notify any of the Grantee’s actual or prospective employers of the existence and terms of this Agreement and
agrees that the Company may notify such employers of the terms of this Agreement as well.

(d) The Grantee agrees that any breach, threatened breach, or attempted breach by the Grantee of Sections 13 , 14 , and/or 15 of this
Agreement will cause immediate and irreparable harm to the Company that cannot be adequately remedied by money damages and will entitle the
Company to immediate injunctive relief and/or specific performance in any court of competent jurisdiction, as well as to all other legal or equitable
remedies and Uniform Trade Secrets Act remedies, where applicable, to which the Company may be entitled.

(e) If a jury or court of competent jurisdiction finds that the Grantee has breached Section 14 of this Agreement, and this finding
becomes final after any appeals are exhausted, then the Grantee is liable to the Company, for each breach, in an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the
Grantee’s last total annual compensation provided by the Company. The Grantee agrees that if the Grantee breaches Section 14 of this Agreement, then
Company will suffer actual damages in an amount that would be difficult if not impossible to determine and that the liquidated damages imposed for a
breach of Section 14 of this Agreement represent the damages fairly estimated by the parties to result from any breach and do not constitute a penalty.
Furthermore, the Grantee agrees that the imposition of these liquidated damages does not demonstrate or imply that the Company would not suffer
irreparable harm from any breach of this Agreement and does not render improper the award of injunctive relief.

® The Grantee agrees that if the Grantee breaches, threatens to breach, or attempts to breach any of the provisions of Section 15(c)
following termination of employment with the Company, then the post-employment restricted period for Section 15(c) shall be extended to encompass
the period of one (1) year from the date the Company obtains a court order providing preliminary or permanent injunctive relief enjoining the Grantee
from any or



all acts and/or omissions contrary to Section 15(c) . Similarly, if the Grantee breaches, threatens to breach, or attempts to breach any of the provisions of
Sections 15(d) and/or 15(e) following termination of employment with the Company, then the restricted period for Sections 15(d) and/or 15(e) shall be
extended to encompass the period of two (2) years from the date the Company obtains a court order providing preliminary or permanent injunctive relief
enjoining the Grantee from any acts and/or omissions contrary to Sections 15(d) and/or 15(e) .

(2) If the Company is, in its sole judgment, compelled to assert a cause of action against the Grantee to enforce or remedy any breach,
threatened breach, or attempted breach of Sections 13 , 14 , and/or 15 of this Agreement, then the Grantee agrees to reimburse the Company for its
reasonable attorneys’ fees and other reasonable expenses incurred in the investigation and successful prosecution or settlement of any such cause of action
in addition to any damages or other remedies obtained by the Company.

(h) If any part of the restrictions contained in Section 15 of this Agreement are found unenforceable by any court of competent
jurisdiction, then the parties agree that they intend for the court to enforce the restrictions to the extent reasonable or enforceable and to not decline
enforcement. The parties agree that, in any litigation over Section 15 of this Agreement, they will jointly advocate this position to the court and/or any

jury.

17. Information . Information about the Grantee and the Grantee’s participation in the Plan may be collected, recorded and held, used and
disclosed for any purpose related to the administration of the Plan. The Grantee understands that such processing of this information may need to be carried out by
the Company and its Subsidiaries and by third party administrators whether such persons are located within the Grantee’s country or elsewhere, including the
United States of America. The Grantee consents to the processing of information relating to the Grantee and the Grantee’s participation in the Plan in any one or
more of the ways referred to above.

18. Benefit of Agreement . Subject to the provisions of the Plan and the other provisions hereof, this Agreement is for the benefit of and is
binding on the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

19. Entire Agreement . This Agreement, together with the Plan, embodies the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements and understandings relating to the subject matter hereof. No statement,
representation, warranty, covenant or agreement not expressly set forth in this Agreement shall affect or be used to interpret, change or restrict the express terms
and provisions of this Agreement; provided , however , in any event, this Agreement shall be subject to and governed by the Plan. The Administrator shall have
authority, subject to the express provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, to establish, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan, and to make
all other determinations that are, in the judgment of the Administrator, necessary or desirable for the administration of the Plan. The Administrator may correct any
defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or in this Agreement in the manner and to the extent it shall deem expedient to carry the Plan
into effect and it shall be the sole and final judge of such expediency. All actions by the Administrator under the provisions of this Section 19 shall be conclusive
for all purposes. The Grantee specifically understands and agrees that the SARs are being granted under the Plan, copies of which Plan the Grantee acknowledges
the Grantee has read, understands and by which the Grantee agrees to be bound.

20. Amendments . Any amendment to the Plan shall be deemed to be an amendment to this Agreement to the extent that the amendment is
applicable hereto; provided , however , that no amendment shall adversely affect the rights of the Grantee with respect to the SARs without the Grantee’s consent.

21. Severability . It is the intention and agreement of the Company and the Grantee that this Agreement shall be construed in such a manner as to
impose only those restrictions on the conduct of the Grantee that are reasonable in light of the circumstances as they then exist and as are necessary to assure the
Company of the intended benefit of this Agreement. In the event that one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall be invalidated for any reason by a court
of competent jurisdiction, any provision so invalidated shall be deemed to be separable from the other provisions hereof, and the remaining provisions hereof shall
continue to be valid and fully enforceable.

22. Governing Law . This Agreement is made under, and shall be construed in accordance with the internal substantive laws of the State of Ohio.
23. Waivers and Consents . The terms and provisions of this Agreement may be waived, or consent for the departure therefrom granted, only by

written document executed by the party entitled to the benefits of such terms or provisions. No such waiver or consent shall be deemed to be or shall constitute a
waiver or consent with respect to any other



terms or provisions of this Agreement, whether or not similar. Each such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the purpose for
which it was given, and shall not constitute a continuing waiver or consent.

24, Electronic Delivery and Consent to Electronic Participation . The Company mays, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents
related to the SARs and participation in the Plan or future grants of Stock Appreciation Rights that may be granted under the Plan by electronic means.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Grantee hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and to participate in the
Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or another third party designated by the Company, including the
acceptance of Stock Appreciation Rights grants and the execution of award agreements through electronic signature.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



Executed in the name and on behalf of the Company in Westerville, Ohio as of , 20

LANCASTER COLONY CORPORATION

By:

Name: Matthew R. Shurte

Title: General Counsel

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT

Grantee hereby: (a) acknowledges receiving a copy of the Plan, which has either been previously delivered or is provided with this Agreement, and
represents that he or she is familiar with and understands all provisions of the Plan and this Agreement; (b) voluntarily and knowingly accepts this Agreement and
the SARs granted to him or her under this Agreement subject to all provisions of the Plan and this Agreement; and (c) represents that he or she understands that the
acceptance of this Agreement through an on-line or electronic system, if applicable, carries the same legal significance as if he or she manually signed the
Agreement. Grantee further acknowledges receiving a copy of the Company’s most recent annual report to shareholders and other communications routinely
distributed to the Company’s shareholders and a copy of the prospectus pertaining to the Plan.

Grantee Name:




Exhibit 31.1

Certification by Chief Executive Officer
I, David A. Ciesinski, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Lancaster Colony Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: May 1, 2018 By: /s/ DAVID A. CIESINSKI

David A. Ciesinski
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification by Chief Financial Officer
I, Douglas A. Fell, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Lancaster Colony Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: May 1,2018 By: /s/ DOUGLAS A. FELL

Douglas A. Fell
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18, UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Lancaster Colony Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ending March 31, 2018 , as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), David A. Ciesinski, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Douglas A.
Fell, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, respectively, do each hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

By: /s/ DAVID A. CIESINSKI
David A. Ciesinski
Chief Executive Olfficer

May 1, 2018

By: /s DOUGLAS A. FELL
Douglas A. Fell
Chief Financial Officer

May 1, 2018

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure
document.



